HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 11, 2005
1:41 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:41:29 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft

Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Carl Moses
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Rick Urion, Director, Qccupational Licensing, Departnment of
Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent; John Wl sh, Lobbyi st,
Al aska Psychol ogi cal Associ ati on; WIliam Cor bus,
Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of Revenue; Mtch Usibelli,
Manager , Usi bel | i Ener gy; Representative Jay Ranras;
Representative John Coghill; Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Linda WIson, Deputy Director, Public Defender Agency,
Department of Admnistration; Martin Beals, Jr., MD.,
Pedi atrician, Anchorage; Debbie Golden, Mrch of D nes,
Anchor age; Lisa Owmens, Audiologist, Anchorage; Debbi e
Joslin, Eagle R ver; Tara Henry, Sexual Abuse Nurse Exam ner
(SANE), Anchorage, Tamara DelLucia, Ofice of Victims
Ri ghts; Dan D ckinson, Director, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue; Colleen Chinn-Acca, Fairbanks; Mrtin Beals, Jr.,
M D. Pediatrician, Anchorage.

SUMVARY

HB 123 "An Act relating to occupational licensing fees
and receipts; extending the term nation dates of
the Boards of Barbers and Hairdressers, Social
Wor k Exam ners, Pharmacy, Professional Counsel ors,
Psychol ogi st and Psychol ogi cal Associ at e

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



HB 71

HB 219

HB 91

HB 109

Exam ners, and Veterinary Exam ners; relating to
an exenption that allows one bill to continue nore
t han one board, comm ssion, or agency programnm and
providing for an effective date."

CSHB 123 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with
a "no recomendation” recommendation and wth
fiscal inpact note #1 by the Departnent of
Commer ce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent .

"An  Act relating to a credit for certain
expl oration expenses agai nst oi | and gas
properties production taxes on oil and gas
produced from a |ease or property in the state;
relating to the deadline for certain exploration
expenditures used as credits against production
tax on oil and gas produced from a |ease or
property in the Al aska Peninsula conpetitive oi
and gas area wide |lease sale area after July 1,
2004; and providing for an effective date."

HB 71 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

"An  Act relating to crines and dangerous
instrunments.”

CSHB 219 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and with three zero
fiscal inpact notes: #1 CRT, #2 LAW #3 DPS, and a
new ADM zero fiscal note

"An Act relating to indecent exposure."

HB 91 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass"” recomendation and with three zero fisca
i npact notes: #1 ADM #2 LAW and #3 CRT.

"An Act relating to establishing a screening,
tracking, and intervention programrelated to the
hearing ability of newborns and infants; providing
an exenption to licensure as an audiol ogist for
certain persons performng hearing screening
tests; relating to insurance coverage for newborn
and infant hearing screening; and providing for an
effective date.”

HB 109 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

1:41: 44 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 123

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



"An Act relating to occupational l|icensing fees and
recei pts; extending the termnation dates of the Boards
of Barbers and Hairdressers, Social Wrk Exam ners,
Phar macy, Professional Counselors, Psychologist and
Psychol ogi cal Associ ate Exam ners, and Veterinary
Exam ners; relating to an exenption that allows one
bill to continue nore than one board, conm ssion, or
agency program and providing for an effective date."

RICK URI ON, DI RECTOR OCCUPATI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF
COWUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT; offered to answer
guestions regarding HB 123.

Co- Chair Meyer asked for an explanation of the $486, 000
fiscal note. M. WUion reported that the fiscal note covers
direct costs by the boards. Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired if
that amount is already built into the budget. M. Uion
replied that is correct.

Co- Chair Meyer asked where the funds from the fines and
penal ties go. M. Uion explained that the fines went to
the profession until a few years ago. It was discovered
that fines are not covered in law, so new |egislation was
needed. He related that the fines do not generate revenue
because it costs noney to collect them The bill addresses
an issue of fairness when it allows fines and penalties
collected by various occupations to be included with fee
collections for the purpose of determ ning whether revenue
col |l ected approxi mately equals the total costs of regul ation
for an occupation or board.

1: 46: 28 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked how nuch the Departnment of Law
actually spends on collecting the fines. M. Uion replied

that he could | ook up the records. He added that there are
five personnel alone that deal wth occupational Iicensing
I Ssues.

Representative Wyhrauch asked if |licensing fines are

determ ned on a case-by-case nethod. M. Uion replied that
various boards have various nethods of figuring out the

fines. Representati ve Weyhrauch suggested that some cases
m ght be technical violations, others fraud, which would
require different fine anounts. M. Uion said that is
correct.

1:49:11 PM

Representative Hawker asked if there is unequal allocation
of fine costs between occupations. M. Uion replied that
woul d be handl ed at individual board |evels. Costs from a
profession wll be borne by its own profession. He
enphasi zed that every profession favors this bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer asked if licensing fees woul d decrease. M.
Uion replied that the anobunt is m niscule.

1: 51: 44 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker MOVED to adopt Amendnent 3:

Page 1, line 1

After “An act relating to”

Del ete “occupational licensing fees and receipts;”
Page 1, line 7

Del ete Section 1

Page 2, line 28

Del ete Section 2

Page 3, line 9

Del ete Section 3

Page 3, line 20

Del ete Section 4

Page 4, line 22

Del ete Section 11

Page 4, line 27

Del ete Section 12

Renunber remai ning sections accordingly.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes.

Represent ati ve Hawker explained that the Anendnent 3 del etes
all sections in the bill not related to the extensions of
the boards. The conmittee has attenpted in the past to keep
board extensions clean and not cluttered with other issues,
not mx policy with mnisterial activities. He suggested
that the commttee would need to hear fromall of the boards
in order to know that they all are supportive of the new CS.

M. Uion related that |last year he was directed to wite
this bill in its current form He expressed frustration
about the turn of events with the addition of Amendnent 3.

Vice-Chair Stoltze noted that it is inportant to clean
sunsets up

Co- Chair Meyer W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON
There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, Anmendnent 3 was adopt ed.

1:55:46 PM

JOHN WALSH, LOBBYI ST, ALASKA PSYCHOLOG CAL ASSCClI ATI ON,
asked if Anmendnent 3 anmends the bill as previously anended
by Anendnent 1. Representative Hawker responded that

Amendment 3 anends Version Y, the Labor and Commerce CS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



Representative Foster noved to report CSHB 123 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CSHB 123 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "no
recommendati on” recommendation and with fiscal inpact note
#1 by the Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

1: 59: 10 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 71

"An Act relating to a credit for certain exploration
expenses against oil and gas properties production
taxes on oil and gas produced from a |ease or property
in the state; relating to the deadline for certain
exploration expenditures wused as «credits against
production tax on oil and gas produced from a | ease or
property in the Al aska Peninsula conpetitive oil and
gas areawi de |ease sale area after July 1, 2004; and
providing for an effective date."

W LLI AM CORBUS, COVM SSI ONER, DEPARTVENT OF REVENUE,
rel at ed:

House Bill 71 extends fromJuly 1, 2007 to July 1, 2010
t he deadl i ne for maki ng qual ified expl oration
expendi tures under new AS 43.55.025 (passed in 2003) in
the Bristol Bay area. Leases in the Bristol Bay
(Al aska Peninsula) Conpetitive G| and Gas Lease Sale
are not expected to be issued prior to the spring of
2006. Production expenditures on these |eases thus
will nost likely be made after July 1, 2007 and will
not qualify for tax credits under the current |aw.

House Bill 71 is intended to encourage exploration and
devel opnent of one of the |argest undevel oped onshore
oil and gas fields remaining in Al aska outside of the
North Sl ope. Devel opnent of this field has the
potential to bring stable, high paying, year round jobs
to an area which has traditionally relied on a seasona
commercial fishing econony. Gas fromthis field can
provide an efficient relatively |ow cost energy source
for heating and the production of electricity to the

Al aska Peninsul a area. O1 and gas devel opnent can
provide transportation infrastructure and |ower the
cost of living in this area. Local residents and

comercial interests, including native corporations in
the Al aska Peninsula area support devel opnent of the
gas and oil resources in this area. Under the terns of
the | ease sale, any devel opnent of oil and gas under

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



state waters within the three-mle Iimt would have to
be done by directional drilling from onshore.

Three changes were made to HB 71 in the House Resources
Conmittee substitute:

1. A change to HB 71 was added in the House Resources
Commttee to extend the exploration tax credit to wells
drilled in the Nenana Basin through July 1, 2008. The
Adm ni stration supports this anmendnent.

2. A second change added in the Resources Conmttee
substitute elimnates the exploration tax credit for
exploration in ANVR

3. The third change added i n House Resources elim nates
the exploration tax credit for certain wells that m ght
be considered delineation wells under the current |aw
The Admi nistration does not support this change to
exi sting tax policy. The idea behind the original bill
was if an explorer was going to push the boundaries of
t he area under production out 25 mles, then the state
woul d underwrite the well work associated wth that
exploration, even to the extent of figuring out how
much production is there. All the other limts -of
ki nds of expense and when the work has to be done still
exist. W think that was good idea then, we think it’'s
a good idea now and if explorers thought it was a good
i dea, we shouldn’t change the |law now. These conpanies
have made and are maki ng deci sions based on a | aw that
was to be in effect fromJuly 1, 2004 to July 1, 2007
it would be inappropriate to nmake changes to that |aw
at this tine.

2: 04: 20 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked which change was not endorsed.
Conmi ssi oner Corbus deferred to Dan Di cki nson.

2: 05: 01 PM

DAN DI CKI NSQN, DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, (via teleconference) responded that the tax policy
change nmade in the House Resources CS, which the
Adm nistration is not endorsing, changed the requirenents
and limtations on which wells mght or mght not qualify
for the last two years of the four years fromwhich this tax
credit can apply.

Representative Hawker asked for «clarification on the
| anguage at i ssue.

M. Dickinson replied the language is found in Section 1,
lines 7-10 (new subsection 3), Section 3, 4 and 5. Under
the current legislation, a 20 percent credit is set up if an
exploration well is drilled nore than 3 mles from an

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



existing well. There is also a 20 percent credit if an
exploration well is nmore than 25 mles froma unit boundary,
as it existed on the date in the bill. If a conpany
qualifies for both credits, then a 40 percent credit is
possi bl e. The CS does not allow for credit for wells that
are less than 3 mles froma prior well, but nore than 25
mles froma | eased boundary. He gave an exanpl e.

2: 09: 30 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker inquired about the rational behind the
change. M. D ckinson replied that once hydrocarbons have
been found, the thought is that the state should stop
subsidi zing and not allow any nore dollars for the credit.
| f the boundaries are pushed out, the credit is then earned.
The issue is how far the boundaries can be extended and
still qualify for credit.

Representative Hawker asked if there could be one or two
wells in proximty to each other as part of an initial
exploratory find, or if that is prohibited.

M. Dickinson replied that the new | anguage woul d prohibit
t hat situation. HB 61 created a credit in the inconme tax
for certain exploration and development work in the Cook

I nl et. It is appropriate at times to issue a credit
pertinent to the activity needed to get additional
production, which is the goal. Representative Hawker noted
that the line is clear in this CS between exploration
drilling and devel opnent drilling.

Co-Chair  Meyer asked if M. D ckinson agreed wth
Representative Hawker. He replied that the definitions are
based on the | ocation of the well.

2:13:13 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch noted on page 2, line 6, in Version
S, the word “or” appears. He recalled that the Ways and
Means version had the word “and”. He asked if this is a

change. M. Dickinson thought the wording should say “and”.
He clarified that the Resource Committee set up three
situations in subsections 1, 2, and 3.

2:16: 26 PM

Representative Wyhrauch referred to Section 4 and asked
whet her outer boundaries that have not been delineated by
the required date m ght prevent eligibility. M. D ckinson
explained that the lack of a unit boundary would still
gqualify a newwell in the Bristol Bay extension area for the
20 percent credit. M. Dickinson recalled that if the
boundary had not been delineated, you did not qualify.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS expl ained that is a policy call
about the second well. In response to the question about
“and” and “or”, he explained that the Resources Conmttee
swtched from “and” to “or” because it didn’'t want anyone
receiving an 80 percent credit. He opined that the wording
still needs clarification. He shared discussions that
happened in the Resources Commttee Meeting.

2:21: 26 PM

Representative Holm asked about the rationale for only
al l owi ng one wel | .

Representative Sanuels explained the thinking behind the
decision. The idea was not to give credit for exploration
on a known property.

M. Dickinson strongly urged that the commttee adopt HB 71
be adopted with the additional conceptual |anguage changes.

2:23:43 PM

M TCH USI BELLI, MANAGER, USIBELLI ENERGY, NENANA, related
that his conpany is involved in two projects, Nenana Basin

and Healy Basin. He referred to handouts on each project
(copy on file.) He shared the history of the Nenana Basin
project and explained the maps in the handout. He terned
this pr oj ect an exciting, yet high-risk frontier
expl orati on. He highlighted the summary sheet of
Exploration Incentive Credit Prograns. He noted that the
sunset date on the project is 2007.

2:30: 33 PM

M. Usibelli described the history of the second project,

the proposed Healy Basin exploration |icense. He spoke of
proj ects del ays. He described the maps in the handout. He
noted that this project is a gas-only project, for coal bed
nmet hane and shall ow gas exploration. The coal bed net hane
i ndustry has grown rapidly and the Departnment of Energy’s
forecast is for the production of non-conventional gas to
i ncrease. He reviewed the summary sheet on Healy
Expl oration License Application and discussed the current
tinmeline.

2:35:40 PM

In response to a question from Co-Chair Meyer, M. Usibelli
replied that he thinks that this tax system works.

Representative Holm asked how |long before data wll be
avai |l abl e on the projects. M. Usibelli replied that his
conpany is processing that data now and will know nore over

next two to three nonths, by m d-sumer.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



In response to a question from Representative Kelly, M.

Usi belli replied that both areas’ wells would be outside of
the 25-mle and 3-mle limts. He added that if well is
over the 30 years old the limt does not apply.

2:39:05 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked how this tax incentive is going to
affect his company’s coal bed nethane, and oil and gas,
exploration. M. Usibelli replied that initial exploration
work would qualify for this tax credit. Co- Chair Chenaul t
referred to the Healy Basin and asked about its size in
relation to the tax incentive. M. Usibelli said it is his

understanding that the area falls outside of the 25-mle
limt. He explained that there is plenty of opportunity for
expl oration there.

2:41:55 PM

Co-Chair Meyer suggested that a new CS be witten
incorporating potenti al amendnent s. He asked for
information about Cook Inlet drilling. M. Dickinson
reported that AS 43.55.025. applies to any gas or oil
exploration drilling in the state and creates a four-year
wi ndow. This bill expands the wi ndow for specific areas at
t he request of the Governor.

2:44: 25 PM

Representative Kelly suggested finding mddle ground between
the extremes of opinion surrounding this bill. He noted
that he feels under-informed about the bill. M. D ckinson

offered to provide additional information. He related that
Representative Sanmuels sumed it up earlier.

Co-Chair Chenault noted that the mle |limts need to be
addressed and that he would be offering anendnents.

2:48: 56 PM

M. Dickinson sunmarized that the intent is to push the
boundaries of exploration. The Cook Inlet would only be
able to nove south. A lot of activity would be excluded

t hat woul d ot herw se qualify.

2:50: 12 PM

Representative Kelly asked for <clarification on the
departnment’s position. M. D ckinson observed that there
were several changes nade. The departnent has no problem
with the extension to the Nenana Basin. There is only one
aspect that the departnment objects to.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



HB 71 was HELD in Committee for further consideration.

2:51: 19 PM

At ease.

3:03: 56 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 219

"An Act relating to crines and dangerous instrunents.”

3:04:19 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker, sponsor, explained that the idea for
the bill was brought to him by an expert forensics nurse
Ms. Tara Henry. The crime of strangulation is currently
prosecuted as a m sdeneanor. The bill would change that to
make strangulation a felony, a serious |ife-threatening

assault. The Departnment of Law, the Public Safety Enpl oyee
Associ ation, police departnments, the Al aska State Troopers,
the donestic violence prevention conmunity, and the
forensics comunity support this bill. HB 219 has zero
fiscal inpact notes, except for the Public Defender Agency
i ndet ermi nate note.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if the bill could adversely affect
a Good Samaritan or soneone performng CPR  Representative
Hawker added that another possible concern is about a
strangling occurred in self-defense. He opined that the
bill does not conprom se any other area within crimnal |aw
He shared a story about |aw enforcenment training, which is
no |l onger allowed to use chokehol ds.

Representative Kelly asked about this law as it applies in
other states. Representative Hawker noted that is a popul ar
issue in other states.

3:10:49 PM

TARA HENRY, SEXUAL ABUSE NURSE EXAM NER ( SANE), ANCHORAGE,
(via teleconference) related that she is forensic nurse who

provi des expert t esti nony on assaul ts, i ncl udi ng
strangul ati on. Strangul ation is comonly used in donestic
vi ol ence assaults. She explained the physics of

strangul ation and the |ack of visible synptons. She urged
t he passage of HB 219 so that these cases can be prosecuted
as felonies. She |isted other states that have, or are in
the process of having, strangulation bills.

3:15: 21 PM

Representative Croft inquired if the problemis difficulty
in proving the crine. M. Henry explained that one problem

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



is that a nedical expert is needed to testify in these
cases. Also, a jury is often unable to see physical
evidence in this crine.

TAMARA DELUCI A, OFFICE OF VICTIMS RIGATS, ANCHORAGE, (via

t el econf erence) related that strangulation is under
pr osecut ed. She el aborated upon the physical synptons of
strangul ation, sone which lead to brain death. The bil

woul d not require the prosecutor to show physical injury in
order to charge the felony conduct. She shared that Al aska
ranks number one in the nation for donestic violence death,
many of which are a result of strangulation. She strongly
urged support of HB 219.

3:20:31 PM

Representative Hawker spoke to the fiscal notes. He
di sagreed with the Public Defender Agency’s indeterm nate
fiscal note, saying that it should be a zero note.

Co- Chair Chenault opined that there woul d be increased court
costs if strangulation is changed from a m sdeneanor to a
felony. He added that he woul d not oppose the zero note.

Representative Weyhrauch agreed with Co-Chair Chenault and
asked what happens when it does cost nore. Representati ve
Hawker explained the difference between an indeterm nate
note and a zero note. Co-Chair Meyer said that
indeterm nate notes are counted as zero notes for budgeting
pur poses.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch asked about the dates on the notes.
Co- Chair Meyer expl ained that the proposed fiscal note would
be a zero note.

3:27:41 PM

Representative Holm wondered if there is an increase in
trial court costs due to felony trials.

Represent ati ve Hawker spoke in favor of the zero note.
Representative Kelly wondered if the <change from a
m sdeneanor to a felony would be easier, yet riskier, to
pr osecut e.

3:30: 08 PM

LI NDA WLSON, DEPUTY D RECTOR, PUBLIC DEFENDER AGENCY
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON, (via tel econference) responded
that the indetermnate fiscal note is appropriate. Felonies
are nmuch nore costly to prosecute, even though some donestic
vi ol ence charges may be handled by the city. She predicted

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



that there would be nore felony prosecutions and a fisca
i mpact .

Representative Hawker said that the crinme of strangulation
is already a felony and this bill would not change that, but
activities my be realigned within the |egal process. He
indicated that it works out to be a zero sumgain wthin the
i ndi vi dual organi zati ons.

3:33: 58 PM

Co-Chair Meyer asked how nmany nore case are anticipated.
Ms. WIlson replied she could not guess that nunber.

Co- Chair Meyer accepted the new zero fiscal note.

3:35:54 PM

Representati ve Hawker MOVED to ADOPT Conceptual Amendnent 1
Page 1, line 1:
Del ete “crimes and dangerous instrunents”
Insert “the definition of ‘dangerous instrunent’ as
applied within the crimnal code”
Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes.
Representative Hawker explained that the anendnent would
tighten up the title to include hands as a dangerous
i nstrunent .
Co- Chair Meyer W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON
There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, Anmendrment 1 was adopt ed.

3:37:24 PM

Representative Croft indicated that he expected to find
strangul ation described wunder the definition of serious
physical injury. He wondered why it fell under the
dangerous instrunents category.

Representative Hawker explained that was the original

approach to the bill, but Ilegislative legal and the
Departnment of Law agreed it wuld be too wide of a
definition. The House Judiciary Commttee determ ned that
it is a tight, but not overriding bill. The current

| anguage is a precise, targeted, and effective way of
acconplishing the intention of the bill.

Representative Croft asked for the Public Defender’s opinion

whether it is cleaner in the dangerous instrunment definition
or in the serious physical definition. M. WIson responded

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



that Representative Croft mght be confusing deadly weapons
wi th dangerous instrunments. She opined that it nmakes nore
sense to include it w th dangerous instrunents.

3:41: 30 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to report CSHB 219 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal inpact notes. There being NO OBJECTI ON,
it was so ordered.

CSHB 219 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth three =zero fiscal inpact
notes: #1 CRT, #2 LAW #3 DPS, and a new ADM zero fiscal
not e.

3:43: 03 PM

HOUSE BILL NO. 91

"An Act relating to indecent exposure."

Representative Coghill, sponsor, explained that the bill was
a result of an indecent exposure incident where the crimnal
was charged with a m sdenmeanor. HB 91 states that if there
is a second exposure conviction, the crinme noves up to a
Class C felony.

Representative Weyhrauch asked if the bill involves exposure
and masturbation. Representative Coghill responded that
pending testinmony would help clarify that question. He
explained that if there is a previous conviction of indecent
exposur e, a second instance would be a felony.
Representative Weyhrauch asked for nore information about a
second incident. Representative Coghill explained the

el ements of purposeful, and know ngly commtting the crinme.

Representative Croft asked if it applies to mnors only.
Representative Coghill replied that it does.

3:48: 24 PM

DEBBI E JOSLIN, EAGLE RIVER, (via teleconference) spoke of an
exposure incident in Delta Junction involving her two
daughters, ages 2 and 7. Because nmasturbation was not
i nvol ved, the man was charged with a m sdeneanor. He had a
history of exposure to children. She ternmed it a gateway
crime to abuse of children. The bill applies to second-tine
incidents with mnors under 16.

3:53: 36 PM

Representative Croft spoke of his own two children and fears
of sonething happening to them He noted that Section 1

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



clearly tal ks about exposure in front of a mnor. Section 2
needs | anguage added such as “exposure or conduct described
above in front of a mnor”. Representative Coghill said
that was al so his concern. He noted that reckless disregard
woul d have to be proven. He stated an intention that it say
“for those under 16”.

Representative Croft noted he would contact |egislative
| egal about this issue.

Representati ve Weyhrauch noted that the prosecution of this
crime would be determined by the child s perceptions and
testi nony. He question how innocent behavior could be
saf equarded. Representative Coghill said that’s why he went
to AS 11.41.460 to include “know ngly, purposeful act”, and
AS 11. 41. 458, which addresses masturbati on.

Representative Kelly asked if the exposer would be listed as
a sex offender. Representative Coghill said yes.

4:01: 00 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to report HB 91 out of Conmittee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
i npact notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

HB 91 was REPORTED out of Comrittee with a "do pass”
recomrendation and with three zero fiscal inpact notes: #1
ADM #2 LAW and #3 CRT.

4:02:19 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 109

"An Act relating to establishing a screening, tracking,
and intervention programrelated to the hearing ability
of newborns and infants; providing an exenption to
licensure as an audiologist for certain persons
performng hearing screening tests; relating to
I nsurance coverage for newborn and infant hearing
screening; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, sponsor, explained that the bill
is for mandatory screening for hearing | oss for newborns, an
investment in the future. The fiscal note is mnor,
$30, 000, to handle 10,000 live births in Al aska per year.
Hearing loss is the nunber one congenital birth defect and
it affects 30 to 40 Al askans per year. The cost of tracking
a child who's hearing | oss goes undetected in the first two
to three years of life is about $412,000 per child. The
$30, 000 annual fiscal note would protect from a potenti al
$12 million future liability. Hearing loss is often not
detected until children are between 2 and 3 years old, which

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



effects their cognitive devel opnent. This nmandate has been
adopted in 33 other states.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked iif there are any service
organi zations that take on this cause.

Representative Ranras explained that the Quota Cub's
mssion is to help with hearing issues. Currently children
are not being tracked and there is a need to develop a
statistical base.

4: 06: 08 PM

DEBBI E GOLDEN, MARCH CF DI MES, ANCHORAGE, (via
tel econference) explained the history and m ssion of March
of Dinmes. Hearing loss is the nost comon birth disability.
She spoke of the costs and savings of hearing screenings.
Passing HB 109 will assure that all newborns are tested.

COLLEEN CHI NN- ACCA, FAI RBANKS, (via teleconference) read a
statenment from Sarah Pate urging support for HB 109. She
stressed the effectiveness of early intervention. She spoke
in support of the legislation. She noted that children who
don’t hear, miss the early |anguage-|learning period. Early
| anguage intervention allows the possibility of cochlear
i mpl ant s.

4:14: 30 PM

LI SA ONENS, AUD OLOd ST, ANCHORAGE, (via teleconference)
spoke in support of the legislation. She stressed the
i nportance of early intervention. Children under three with
heari ng | oss show speech del ays, and difficulties in reading
and in social interaction. They require nore special
resources as children and as adults. Those children who are
identified before the age of three have less need for
support and special prograns and have opportunity for
cochl ear i nplants.

4:18: 07 PM

In response to a question by Co-Chair Meyer, M. Omens
descri bed nmethods used to test children under three. Tests
can be done by a variety of health care and childcare
prof essions. She described the testing procedure. Co-Chair
Meyer asked if an ear, nose, and throat specialist would
typically test hearing | oss. Ms. Owens replied that a
specialist would need to perform the tests using the new
technol ogy. She expl ai ned vari ous types of hearing | oss.

MARTIN BEALS, JR, MD. PED ATRI ClI AN, ANCHORACE, (via

tel econference) testified in support of the legislation. He
noted that early intervention saves costs.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



4:23:28 PM

Representati ve Foster spoke in support of the |egislation.
HB 109 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:25 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 11/05 1:41 P. M



